
DE-SOL-0003641 – Questions and Responses


Amendment 004 - Questions and Responses through close of business 1-17-2013.  The following questions have been received from Potential Offerors through close of business 1-17-2013 and Government responses are provided below in a question and answer format.  The Government response has been highlighted in bold.  
Please note the due date for receipt of proposals has not been extended in Amendment 004.  Proposals are due 01-28-2013 (Reference Amendment 002 dated 01-02-2013).
____________________________________________________________________________

Q.
J.2 ATTACHMENT A2 -  PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT.  This indicates that there are six (6) main tasks (Site Management Support, ES&H Support, Property Support, Grounds Maintenance Support, Janitorial Support, and Mail Room Distribution and Services). Exhibit G only specifies three (3) main tasks and one transition task (Site Support Services, Health Programs Services, and Janitorial Services).  Are the Project Work Statements to be proposed as shown in Exhibit G or is the proposal to be based upon J.2 ATTACHMENT A2 PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT?

A. 
Attachment A-2 Performance Work Statement is the contract level PWS that defines the overall contract scope from which requirements can be issued as Task Order(s) over the period of performance of the contract.  The contract level PWS provides for 6 service areas in which requirements can be issued in these support areas.  The 3 Sample Task Orders identified in Exhibit G are a sub-set of the contract level PWS and represent the types of Task Orders that can be issue.  The Transition Task Order provides a listing of Task Orders that are expected to be issued during the transition period of this contract. 

For additional information on how to submit a proposal for this requirement, please reference the Proposal instructions contained in Clauses L.11 – L.14 of the RFP.
____________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Is road maintenance to be provided at Albany Site?

A.
No
____________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Are the following tasks to be performed at Morgantown, Pittsburgh, and Albany sites per J.2 ATTACHMENT A2 PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT?

· Moving and relocating of items to/from warehouse

· Conference room layouts

· Delivery of furniture and set up

· Relocating personal com

A. 
The references above are from the contract level PWS which defines the overall scope of the work for the contract.  Any item(s) not specifically identified as being limited to a specific location, could be tasked for any of the NETL sites.  Work is not to be performed without a Task Order being issued.  Task Orders may further define the work, the location of the work, and other specific instructions for the work to be completed.  ___________________________________________________________________________

Q.
The RFP provides current CBAs for the IUOE for site support and janitorial at the Pittsburgh site but an expired CBA for the Morgantown site. Will an updated CBA be provided?

A.  No

___________________________________________________________________________
Q.  Should we bid using the expired rates contained in the Morgantown CBA? 
A.  Offerors should bid in accordance with the WD/CBA’s attached to the RFP.

___________________________________________________________________________
Q.  If we use the expired rates in the Morgantown CBA how will adjustments be made after contract award?

A.
The Government will incorporate new Wage Determinations (WDs) and Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) at specific triggering events. Triggering events are once every 2 years (for CBA’s at the end of the first 12 months and a 2 year cycle thereafter) or the exercise of an option.   In addition, a Successful Offeror assuming a contract that was previously covered under a CBA is afforded a 12 month period to negotiate their own CBA with the respective union(s) which would be incorporated into the contract upon completion.
___________________________________________________________________________
Q.
Do the cleaning requirements shown under Task 3 apply to all janitorial services?

A. 
It is assumed that the reference to “cleaning requirements” was intended to clarify the model national cleaning specification included in Task 3 which would apply to child care facilities.   If this does not answer your question, please clarify the concern and re-submit the question to FedConnect.
____________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Are changes permitted within the following Exhibits to accommodate the Prime’s Indirect Rate Structure?

· Labor Hours, Rates, and Costs Sample Task 1

· Labor Hours, Rates, and Costs Sample Task 2

· Labor Hours, Rates, and Prices Sample Task 3

A.
Reference the proposal instructions in Exhibit B1 through B3 of L.14
PROPOSAL PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS - VOLUME III COST PROPOSAL which reads as follows.  To assist with clarification, certain phrases have been highlighted in yellow.
Indirect rates applied should be clearly identified.  Additional rows shall be inserted if additional indirect rates are proposed.  

Q.
Are changes permitted within the following Exhibits to permit fully burdened rates for a major or critical subcontractor that chooses not to disclose their rates to the prime?

· Labor Hours, Rates, and Costs Sample Task 1

· Labor Hours, Rates, and Costs Sample Task 2

· Labor Hours, Rates, and Prices Sample Task 3

A. 
Reference section 8, Major or Critical Subcontractors in L.14
PROPOSAL PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS - VOLUME III COST PROPOSAL which reads as follows.  To assist with clarification, certain phrases have been highlighted in yellow.
(8)
Major or Critical Subcontractors:  For each major or critical subcontractor, cost/price information shall be required and furnished in the same format and level of detail as prescribed herein for the Offeror. Offeror shall provide these instructions for the cost proposal preparation to each major or critical subcontractor. The Offeror shall review the information of the major or critical subcontractor or if submitted separately as identified in the next paragraph, the Offeror shall review the non-proprietary (roll up or loaded) proposed costs for reasonableness and include these costs on the Offeror’s summary schedule totaling the efforts of the major or critical subcontractors.  

If a major or critical subcontractor is performing on a cost reimbursement basis to the Offeror and desires not to disclose proprietary information (e.g. indirect rates, limitations on indirect rates, etc.) then the major or critical subcontractor may submit the detailed information separately in FedConnect.  The major or critical subcontractor’s proposal must clearly identify which partnership/team they are submitting under.  All submittals must clearly identify the entity with which they are proposing (i.e. Major or Critical Subcontractor X cost proposal in support of Offeror Y). The company name of both the major or critical subcontractor and the Offeror should be included in the file name. (Refer to Section B, Format and Content below.) The Offeror is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the costs submitted separately by their major or critical subcontractors are consistent with the amounts shown in the summary included in the total submitted by the Offeror.  Any deviations in amounts shall be clearly explained in the Cost Discussion section and noted in the summary totals.  In the event that deviations are not explained or identified, the Government may make adjustment in the determination of most probable cost for the cost reimbursement Task Orders.  For the fixed price Task Orders, the Offeror’s proposed fixed price will not be adjusted for any differences between the Offeror’s proposal and that of the major or critical subcontractor(s).
Q.
Within the following Exhibits under the ODC section; must the subcontractors and consultants be listed separately with their associated costs by month, or the cumulative cost of all subcontractors/consultants by month be specified?

· Labor Hours, Rates, and Costs Sample Task 1

· Labor Hours, Rates, and Costs Sample Task 2

· Labor Hours, Rates, and Prices Sample Task 3
A.
Reference the ODC section of Exhibit B1 through B3  in L.14
PROPOSAL PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS - VOLUME III COST PROPOSAL which reads as follows.  To assist with clarification, certain phrases have been highlighted in yellow.
Subcontracts/Consultants  – The Offeror shall provide the estimated cost/price for all anticipated subcontracts/consultants in support of the Sample Task Orders consistent with their proposed technical approach.  The subcontracts cost category shall not include labor cost for DPLH of major or critical subcontractors.  The Offeror shall include in the Cost Discussion File: 1) a summary listing of anticipated subcontracts (with estimated cost/price listed for each subcontract), and 2) a rationale/justification for the subcontract proposed.  In addition, if consultants are anticipated, then the Offeror shall also include: 1) a summary listing of anticipated consultants, 2) rationale/justification for the consultant proposed, and 3) a rationale/basis of rates used.
tc "L.11      PROPOSAL PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS - VOLUME III, COST PROPOSAL " \l 2____________________________________________________________________________
Q.
Should the management section be written to the sample tasks or the broad PWS?
A.
It is assumed the reference to “management section” refers to the Management Approach and Offerors should Reference the Management, Organization, and Staffing Approach included in Clause L.13 Proposal Preparation Instructions – Technical Proposal Volume II which reads as follows.   To assist with clarification, certain phrases have been highlighted in yellow.  If this does not answer your question, please clarify the concern and re-submit the question to FedConnect.
“MANAGEMENT APPROACH  

The Offeror shall describe the proposed approach to managing the contract as a whole…” ____________________________________________________________________________
Q.
Can the Prime have a different DPLH total than a major subcontractor i.e., 1860 hrs and 1820 hrs respectively?

A. 
Yes
____________________________________________________________________________
Q.
Executive Order 13495 and Department of Labor regulations require that we provide Right-of-First-refusal and comparable pay and benefits to incumbent staff. In order to cost the work properly, we need to have access to the current compensation and benefits paid to incumbent employees. Without this baseline, DOE will have bidders using different base pay levels that in fact after award will all be the same. So to eliminate this variability between Offerors, we request DOE provide pay, benefit, and years of vacation information by labor category. 

A.
In accordance with Federal Acquisition Regulation, Federal Acquisition Circular 2005–64 dated December 21, 2012, the final FAR rule on Nondisplacement of Qualified Workers Under Service Contracts was established with an effective date of 1-18-13.  As a result, Clause 52.222-17 Nondisplacement of Qualified Workers has been incorporated into the RFP by amendment 004. 

In accordance with this clause, upon receipt of the certified service employee list but not before contract award the Contracting Officer will provide the certified service employee list to successor contractor and, if requested, to employees of the predecessor contractor or subcontractors or their authorized representatives.

Offeror’s are encouraged to read the comments and responses provided in the FAC 2005-64, specifically those related to what qualifies as a bona fide offer.

_________________________________________________________________________

Q.
The deadline for submittal to FedConnect of 24 hours before the actual deadline now falls on a Sunday. Given recent periods of FedConnect unavailability, if the system is down on Sunday like it was today, we risk being late due to causes outside our control. 

A.  
The deadline for submittal specified in L.9 Electronic Submission of Proposals requires proposals and amendments of proposals to be received no later than 4:30 pm local time on January 28, 2013.  

Please note that Offeror's are encouraged to submit proposals at least 24 hours before the specified deadline in order to have time to resolve any transmission problems. 
______________________________________________________________________________
Q.  
Would DOE consider providing an alternate method of submittal of electronic files, such as FEDEX deliver of DVD/CDs to the Contracting Specialist, if FedConnect is unavailable? Other Federal agencies have allowed this on their procurements.
A.  
No, proposals are required to be submitted in FedConnect as specified in L.9 Electronic Submission of Proposals.  
______________________________________________________________________________
Q.
Would it be possible to do a test upload on FedConnect before our actual submittal in response to Site Operations Support (SOS) Services for NETL (DE-SOL-0003641)? Once the test file is uploaded, can we delete it in preparation to submit our actual response files?

A. 
Yes, Offerors may submit a test upload to FedConnect. 
______________________________________________________________________________
Q.  
If a test file is uploaded, can we delete it in preparation to submit our actual response files?
A.
No.  However, FedConnect will accept subsequent submissions and amendments of proposals.  
______________________________________________________________________________
Q.
The four Sample Task Orders have a total of approximately 80 FTE of labor positions compared to the approximately 130 FTE for the same positions in the Labor category tables in the RFP.  Please confirm that the 4 Task Orders do not represent the entire work to be performed under the PWS during the first year of the contract. 

A. 
Correct, the Sample Task Orders and Transition Task Order do not represent the entire work to be performed under the PWS during the first year of the contract.   

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
With regard to the Quality Assurance Plan, does DOE NETL currently have or require the SOS Contractor to input to any of the following systems: Records Management, Issues Management, or Corrective Action Tracking?

A. 
Content of the QAP is the responsibility of the Offeror; however it must adhere to the instructions in the RFP.  NOTE: the NETL Operating Plan 414.1-1C, Quality Assurance Program Plan is available in the electronic reading room (http://www.netl.doe.gov/business/solicitations/ssc2008/index.html).
***Rest of Page Intentionally Left Blank***
The following questions were released with Amendment 003 dated January 10, 2013 and are repeated in their entirety below (e.g. no changes have been made to the following). Amendment 003 - Questions and Responses through close of business 01-09-2013. 

 The following questions have been received from Potential Offerors through close of business 01-09-2013 and Government responses are provided below in a question and answer format.  The Government response has been highlighted in bold.

Q.
There are 2 sets of instructions for preparation of the proposal cover page that appear to be conflicting. One is found in Clause L.6 52.215-1 Instructions to Offerors – Competitive Acquisitions (Jan 2004) paragraph (c)(2), and the second set of instructions is provided with each of the Technical Proposal Evaluation Criterion included in Clause L.13 Proposal Preparation Instructions – Technical Proposal Volume II. Please clarify which set of instructions should be followed. 

A.
The first set of cover page instructions that is referenced in this question is part of a standard FAR Clause (52.215-1) which provides for the cover page format for proposals required to be submitted in paper media versus other authorized methods of submission (e.g., electronic commerce or facsimile) (like this RFP that requires electronic submission, reference clauses L.8 and L.9)
Please reference the instructions provided in Clauses L.11 (Proposal Preparations Instructions – General), and Clauses L.12 - L.14 (Proposal Preparations Instructions – Volumes I-III) for instructions on the preparation of the proposal cover page(s) required for this RFP
______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Sample Task Order 1, General Requirements item 2).  Why is the Government referring to the use of the Service Contract Act when Pittsburgh and Morgantown are under a Union agreement?  Please clarify.
A.
This requirement and all individual tasks issued under this requirement are covered by the Service Contract Act. Reference I.53 52.222-41 SERVICE CONTRACT ACT OF 1965 (NOV 2007) for more information on wage determinations.   Furthermore, the use of a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) in lieu of a Wage Determination (WD) is to establish the minimum rates for labor rates and benefits only.  A Successful Offeror assuming a contract that was previously covered under a CBA is afforded a 12 month period to negotiate their own CBA with the respective union(s).

_____________________________________________________________________________

The following questions have been received regarding the equipment that requires maintaining for Sample Task Order 1and one Government Response is provided below.

Q.
Reference Sample Task Order 1 and Exhibit 1 appear to be missing a listing of the equipment to be maintained at each of the sites.  Please provide a listing of the air conditioning units and tonnage, air handling units and tonnage, hot water boilers and BTU, steam boilers and BTU, and any other equipment that requires maintaining under this Task Order.  This information is required to perform a more accurate estimate of the skills and man-hours to maintain this equipment.
Q.
Sample Task Order 1 at Albany - there is no HVAC systems listed, please provide or clarify.
A.
Information specific to the items required to be maintained was not provided in the solicitation as the items can change frequently.  As such, the Offerors’ Technical proposal should demonstrate the ability to service and maintain all types of equipment as required in the Performance Work Statements and to provide the corresponding skill set.

Furthermore, the Government has provided various resources to assist in submitting a cost proposal.  Reference the following:

· Listing of the general types of equipment required to be serviced and/or maintained found in Sample Task Order 1, Performance Work Statement, Maintenance Management Section
· Historical average of work requests and preventative maintenance work orders found in Sample Task Order 1, Special Task Order Instructions 
· Labor categories, historical allocation by FTE (Full-time equivalent) and location, and the minimum qualification(s) required for each position found in Attachment D – Position Qualifications
___________________________________________________________________________

***Rest of Page Intentionally Left Blank***
The following questions were released with Amendment 002 dated January 2, 2013 and are repeated in their entirety below (e.g. no changes have been made to the following). Amendment 002 - Questions and Responses through close of business 01-02-2013. 
 The following questions have been received from Potential Offerors through close of business 01-02-2013 and Government responses are provided below in a question and answer format.  The Government response has been highlighted in bold.  
Q.  This is largely a facility operation and maintenance contract with additional professional services support in the areas of engineering, scientific, ES&H and other disciplines, the government typically provides the contractor with office and work spaces on the site where the work is performed.  The contract is silent with regard to government-provided facilities and workspaces for the contractor to carry out its operations.  Will the government provide the contractor with office and workspaces at each site.  Please clarify.

A.   Available office/work spaces for each site are indicated in H. 6 Use of Government-Owned Equipment/Facilities.

Q.  The cost proposal instructions refer to on-site and off-site overhead rates.  At which sites is the contractor required to lease off site facilities in which to carry out the contract work?  Please clarify.

A.   Reference L.14 Proposal Preparation Instructions – Volume III Cost Proposal of the RFP.  Specifically, Exhibit C3 – Off-Site Overhead Expense Schedule which states:
“Although it is not expected that any work shall be required to be performed off-site, NETL is requesting an off-site overhead expense schedule be completed and off-site overhead expense rates and ceilings be established for the Offeror and all major or critical subcontractor(s).”

Q.  Exhibit B1 includes an amount of $828,600 in the cell entitled Total Activity Cost with Fee, and Exhibit B2 and B3 include $405,000 and $500, respectively. These are plug number inserted by the Government. What is the significance of these plug numbers? Is the Total Activity Cost with Fee supposed to be a calculation?

A.   See revisions issued in Amendment 002.
Q.  Where are the Key Personnel, that are not specific to a task (i.e. Project Manager, Business Manager) to be physically located? At which NETL facility?  

A.   The Offeror’s should propose the physical location of the Key Personnel consistent with their proposed technical approach/proposal. ______________________________________________________________________________

The following questions have been received regarding material cost plug numbers and one Government Response is provided below.

Q.  Exhibit F includes a number for materials for each Task Order. The offeror is to insert their numbers for Training and Travel. Are all other direct costs included in the material plug number such as uniforms, safety shoes, office supplies, background investigations, etc., or is the contractor to list these additional items and price them in Exhibit F?
Q.  Section L - Exhibit G, Sample Task Order 3 – Janitorial Support Services, Special Task Order Instructions 6.0 Equipment and Supplies. Please confirm that bidders are to include only the cost of uniforms in the Supplies/Materials row of the Sample Task 3 pricing proposal (Exhibit B3).
A.   For Sample Task Orders 1, 2, and 3, t
he plug numbers for materials shall be utilized as given and were based on the historical information and future projections for estimated material costs (including safety shoes) required for the respective task.  It is noted that the cost of uniforms and/or background investigations have NOT been included in the plug numbers.   Specifically, 

· uniforms are not required for the performance of this contract

· background investigations are not required for performance of the three Sample Task Orders and/or the Transition Task 
If the Offeror elects to provide uniforms and/or perform background investigations, these costs should be captured as Indirect expenses.
______________________________________________________________________________

Q.  ATTACHMENT D POSITION QUALIFICATIONS - Are these actual historical allocations or are these recommended staffing levels?

A.   Historical allocation

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.  ATTACHMENT D POSITION QUALIFICATIONS - Are the minimum qualifications noted a historical item or a required qualification for the personnel working on the contract?

A.   Required minimum qualification(s)
______________________________________________________________________________

Q.  Will the Government re-consider an extension?
A.   Amendment 002 authorizes an extension from 1/15/13 to 1/28/13.
______________________________________________________________________________

Q.  Can you provide the name of the current CMMS and will we be using this or supplying our own?

A.  
The Computerized maintenance management systems (CMMS) used is CHAMPS and is a Government furnished system that the Successful Contractor will have access to upon award of the contract.  

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.  This question is in reference to your answer provided on page 11 of Q&A Amendment 001 in regards to the clarification of which forms are to be provided for Criterion 3 and Criterion 4 of the Technical Volume.  Your answer states that the only form used by both the Offeror and the Offeror's reference(s) is Exhibit F- Environment, Safety, Health and Quality Past Peformance Information Form.  There is no section on Exhibit F that indicates that it requires the Offeror's references to complete this form.  It appears to only require completion by the Offeror.  Did you mean to state that the form used by both the Offeror and the Offeror's reference(s) is Exhibit D Past Performance Questionnaire instead of Exhibit F?

A.  The information stated is accurate.  Reference L.13 Proposal Preparation Instructions – Technical Proposal Volume II which states:
“…provide the Past Performance Questionnaire and the Environment, Safety, Health, and Quality (ESH&Q) Past Performance Information Form provided in Section L, Exhibits D and F, for each contract or project cited, to the appropriate point of contact for that contract or project.”
______________________________________________________________________________

Q.  Task Order 2 - Exhibit I for this task order provides a list of the fitness facilities and the equipment in each per location. Is it our responsibility to maintain this equipment/keep it in operating order? I cannot locate guidance anywhere regarding this in the RFP.

A.  See revisions issued in Amendment 002.
______________________________________________________________________________

Q.  Task Order 4 - The contractor shall develop the transition plan based on the expectation of having task orders issued during the transition period. The question is, when will they be slated to start, during transition, or at the start of the performance period of the effort?
A.  Each Task Order will indicate the specific period of performance.  Potential Offerors shall review the information identified in Section J, Attachment D – Position Qualifications of the master contract for the type and number of staffing historically utilized.
_____________________________________________________________________________

Q.  Will reduced font size be allowed in headers and footers, tables as well as in graphics?
A.
 The 12 point font size specified in Clause L.13 (b) is mandatory to ensure readability of the proposal and was intended for the proposal body text.  It is not NETL’s intent to require 12 point font size in headers/footers and/or to require Offerors to redo their graphics, or tables to conform to this font size.  However, readability is at the risk of the Offeror and graphics/tables with less than 12pt font may not be considered in evaluation of the proposal if they are not legible and clear to the evaluator.   
Q.  Is there a page limit on resumes?

A.   No.  Reference L.13 Proposal Preparation Instructions – Technical Approach Volume II.
Q.  It appears that there are separate files for each volume (i.e. each volume will be submitted (electronically) by individual files, with their individual file names as indicated by the RFP).  So instead of having Volume I and one file, we will have each section in Volume I with its own file, is that correct.

A.   Yes

Q.  L.12(b), Format and Content, Page 268 of 316. Does DOE want the Volume I file names to include the company name, similar to the file naming instructions provided for Volumes II and III (pages 270 and 283, respectively)?
A.  Yes.  See revisions in the RFP attached to this amendment.
Q.  Does Volume I require its own cover page, Table of Contents, etc. for each of the required sections?
A.   No.  Reference the Format and Content instructions for Volume I contained in L.12 Proposal Preparation Instructions – Offer and Other Documents – Volume I.
Q.  Will the page numbering continue from the previous file, or start each file page numbering over at page 1?
A.   Page numbering should be self-contained in the applicable file and not carry over into the next file. 
Q.  Reference L.13(b)Format and Content; This section states that page limits do not apply to "glossaries or list of acronyms or cross reference matrices".  None of these three items, glossaries, list of acronyms, and cross reference matrices are identified as requirements in any of the Volume II Technical Proposal Files. Are any of these required?

A.  No
Q.  Reference L.41f Exhibit F - Environment, Safety, Health, and Quality (ESH&Q) Past Performance Information Form. Should Numbers  1, 2 and 4 on this form be populated and signed by the offeror or major/critical subcontractor, or is this supposed to be populated and signed by the appropriate Point of Contact for each relevant project? 

A.  This information should be populated by the individual completing the form.  Put another way, if the Offeror or major/critical subcontractor, is completing the form, the Offeror or major/critical subcontractor, would complete numbers 1, 2, and 4 or if the Reference Point-of-Contact (POC) is completing the form, the Reference POC would complete numbers 1, 2 and 4. 
***Rest of Page Intentionally Left Blank***
The following questions were released with Amendment 001 dated December 21, 2012 and are repeated in their entirety below (e.g. no changes have been made to the following). Amendment 001 - Questions and Responses through close of business 12-21-2012.  The following questions have been received from Potential Offerors through close of business 12-20-2012 and Government responses are provided below in a question and answer format.  The Government response has been highlighted in bold.  
Q.
Our company assumes NETL will remain in strict adherence to the affiliations rules of SBA regarding proposed key staff having a length history with the proposed prime contractor.  Is this a correct assumption?

A.
SBA rules on affiliation are related to the acceptability of a company size determination.  Size determination and eligibility concerns are under the jurisdiction of the SBA.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
The period of time allotted is much too short to provide a proposal that meets the RFP requirements, therefore we formally request an extension of the proposal due date until February 15, 2013. 

A.  
No significant changes have been made to the RFP; therefore, an extension is not warranted at this time.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
With the ambiguity regarding the impacts of The Affordable Care Act relative to compensation cost owned by the offeror, can NETL provide some guidance as to how these burden costs should be applied and whether adjustments to these cost will be considered by NETL once Obama care is fully integrated.  

A.
The effect and impact of full integration of the Affordable Care Act is not expected to affect a proposal submitted in response to this solicitation.  This will be addressed when full integration is directed.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Under fixed price task orders, will NETL require bid, performance, and payment bonding?

A. 
No

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Do the personnel currently onsite, already possess the new Department of Homeland Security badges or will the Offeror be responsible for badging upon award?

A.
At this time, under this solicitation, HPDS-12 badging is not a requirement.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Has there been a history of work stoppages (i.e. strikes, work protests, etc.)? If so, Please provide the last 5 years of historical work stoppages associated with Union disputes, or employee strikes.

A.
No, there has not been a history of work stoppages (i.e. strikes, work protests, etc.). 

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Under the cost management report of the contract, is the contractor required to provide an EVMS certification project management information system (PMIS)?  

A. 
No

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Is the cost of procurement and certification of the PMIS reimbursable under the contract.

A. 
No, as this is not a requirement of the contract.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Would this contract be the only one using the designated union or are other site contractors signatory to the unions as well? 

A.  
The use of a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) in lieu of a Wage Determination (WD) is to establish the minimum rates for labor rates and benefits only.  A Successful Offeror assuming a contract that was previously covered under a CBA is afforded a 12 month period to negotiate their own CBA with the respective union(s).

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
With existing incumbent staff, can NETL provide current base hourly rates of all staffing and their vestment schedule regarding their vacation, and benefits.  The awarded contractor will assume a baseline employee hourly rate and likely take on vacation vestment liability upon award of the contract.  Please provide.

A. 
In accordance with the requirements of the Service Contract Act, the seniority listing will be provided to the successful contractor during transition of the contract.  
______________________________________________________________________________

The following questions have been received regarding construction activities under this solicitation and one Government Response is provided below.

Q. 
Neither the contract nor PWS provide for a definition of work.  The PWS lists a wide range of tasks and systems on which work is performed.  Exhibit G Sample Task Order 1 indicates that the contractor can expect up to 500 work requests per month and preventive maintenance work orders at 1,000 per month.  However, work requests (normally considered service requests or service orders) are not defined in terms of ceiling hours or dollars.  Since Davis Bacon Act clauses are not included in the contract, should the contractor assume that the nature of the work required under the contract is Service Contract Act work only?  Please provide a definition of work (preventive maintenance, service orders, service calls, projects, etc.) for this contract.  Please note that the Davis Bacon Act establishes definitions and thresholds for work, for which Davis Bacon Act compensation rates are applicable.

Q. 
Reference Attachment J-2 PWS paragraph 4.0, Site Management Support 4th paragraph:

“Modification Management Support services shall include, but are not limited to modification management support for buildings, research and laboratory areas, general purpose equipment, utility systems, and surfaced areas by altering and modifying facilities, equipment, utility systems,…..”

Altering and modifying facilities is normally considered Davis Bacon Act work.  Will the contractor perform facility alteration work or is this requirement aimed at managing alteration work performed by others?  Please clarify.

A.
As noted in the RFP, the work expected to be performed under this contract is subject to the Service Contract Act (SCA).  As such, no construction will be performed under this contract.  “Altering and modifying” of facilities, as used in this solicitation refers to work performed that is expected to fall below the Davis Bacon threshold and/or general maintenance functions that are covered under the services definition of the Federal Acquisition Regulations.  Furthermore, any construction required by the Government will be issued as separate construction contracts outside of this requirement.
______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Can NETL Order 430.1 be made available to offerors via an on line library or via download?

A.  
Reference L.21 DOE-L-107 Availability of Referenced Documents which advises that referenced documents are available in the electronic reading room (http://www.netl.doe.gov/business/solicitations/ssc2008/index.html).

______________________________________________________________________________

The following questions have been received regarding the current incumbent contractors and one Government Response is provided below.

Q. 
Is a FOIA released version of the current contract available for review?

A.
There are two incumbent contractors currently performing services on this award as follows:

Goldbelt Eagle LLC, DE-FE0004004 Site Operations Services/Support, and 

Eagle Design Inc., DE-NT0004717 Grounds Maintenance Janitorial and Related Services. 

A FOIA released version of the both of these contracts () are available on the NETL Electronic Reading Room at http://www.netl.doe.gov/business/solicitations/ssc2008/index.html.  
______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
The Federal Procurement Data System – Next Generation (FPDS-NG) for the current Site Operations Support services contract (DE-FE0004004) indicates a completion date of 11/30/2014. Why does the solicitation indicate transition activities beginning September 1, 2013 and Sample Tasks 1, 2, and 3 beginning December 1, 2013 if the current contract does not end until 11/30/2014?
A. 
The referenced FPDS-NG form reflects only a portion of the requirement included in this solicitation.  The completion date of 11/30/2014 on that referenced FPDS-NG form reflects the total period of performance if all option periods were exercised.  The requirement of this solicitation includes the combined requirements of two previously separate contracts and as such, the estimated period of performance contained in the RFP reflects the correct timeframe(s) of the new requirement being competed under DE-SOL-0003641.

Q. 
Reference RFP, section B, item B.5 - Types of Task Orders Will you provide the rough break down of the contract types you intend to let from those listed in B.5? 

A.  
Please reference B.5 Types of Tasks Orders which define that Cost-Plus-Award Fee (CPAF), Cost-Plus-Fixed-Fee (CPFF), Firm-Fixed Price (FFP), and Fixed Price Incentive (FPI) task orders can be issued under this contract.

______________________________________________________________________________

The following questions have been received regarding H.41, Key Personnel and one Government Response is provided below.

Q. 
Reference Clause H.41 (page 41).  A half-million dollars is an extraordinary penalty for changing the Program Manager “for each and every occurrence” especially when such changes are totally beyond the contractor’s control—for example: death, sickness, demands of DOE, and others too numerous to list here.  The same statement applies to the $100,000 penalty for other key personnel.  We request the government reconsider this penalty and reduce it to a reasonable amount and eliminate the penalty when the loss of personnel is beyond the contractor’s control.

Q. 
Reference:  RFP, page 41, item H.41 Key Personnel.  Will NETL consider amending to read: "unless by DOE request, mutual agreement or something beyond contractors control."

Q. 
There is a conflict in durations of key personnel being one year commitment and the penalty clause that extends to the length of the contract. This could allow unfair leverage of the key personnel with NETL and the company.  We respectfully request to reduce the penalty duration to a consistent period of 1 year.

A. 
Reference paragraph (d)3 of clause H.41 Key Personnel which reads that the Contractor may request, in writing, that the Contracting Officer consider waiving all or part of a reduction in the available award fee pool.  Such written request shall include the factual basis for the request.  The Contracting Officer shall have unilateral discretion to make the determination to waive or not waive all or part of a reduction in the available award fee pool.  No changes were made to the solicitation as a result of this question/request.

______________________________________________________________________________

​​​​​​​​​​​​​​

Q. 
If additional key personnel beyond the required four (4) are identified by the offeror as a means in strengthening our technical approach, will the penalty clause pertain to these position as well?

A.
Yes

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Reference Clause I.54 (page 108).  The base period is a 24-month period.  Wage determinations are issued in 12-month cycles.  Will the government adjust the contract cost/price for the wage increase at the end of the first 12-months?  Please clarify.

A.
The Government will incorporate new Wage Determinations (WDs) and Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) at specific triggering events. Triggering events are once every 2 years (for CBA’s at the end of the first 12 months and a 2 year cycle thereafter) or the exercise of an option.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Reference Attachment J-2 PWS paragraph 3.0.  Where is the PMO to be located?

A. 
The Project Management Office (PMO) is a term used to define a structure in which costs associated with Key Personnel and administrative support personnel are captured.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
The historical labor data provided by category, FTE, and location provided in Clause J.8 Attachment D – Position Qualifications does not include a distribution for the remediation support for Rock Springs, WY in the Performance Work Statement (page 196). Are there resources located in WY or do the other locations provide this support? 

A. 
Historically, this effort was subcontracted. ______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Reference:  RFP, Page 239, Position Qualifications. The Environment, Safety and Health (ES&H) Manager Master's degree in an ES&H or ES&H-related field.  Please confirm that an environmental engineering and/or environmental sciences Masters degree would meet this requirement.

A. 
Yes, these would be considered related fields.
______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Reference Attachment D, page 246, Production Control Clerk Lead.  The qualifications column indicates the Lead Production Control Clerk will supervise additional production control clerks.  However, there are no additional production control clerks assigned to Morgantown.  Please clarify.

A.
Attachment D is historical information and not intended to indicate required/expected staffing levels.  In other words, historically, Morgantown has not been staffed with Production Control Clerk(s).  

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
 Reference Section L (page 235) Sample Task Order 1.  The historical and projected work requirements, i.e., the labor categories and quantities listed, are inconsistent with the Attachment D allocation of labor categories and quantities for each site.  Accordingly, please address the following:

a) Are the labor categories and quantities identified in Attachment D for each site the labor categories and quantities (less PMO staff) that will be ordered after the contract is awarded?  Please clarify.

A. No.  Attachment D, Position Qualifications, provides for the “Historical Allocation”

b) If the Attachment D FTE staffing by location will not be ordered, for the purposes of developing PMO staff estimates and site overhead rates, should the staff levels proposed for sample task orders 1, 2 and 3 be used?  Please clarify.

A. The Offeror should use the staffing anticipated based on your proposed technical approach.

c) Given the variance in staffing (labor categories and quantities) between that identified in Attachment D as historical data and that identified in the Section L for Sample Task Order 1 and 2, has there been a substantial change in scope or funding between the incumbent contract and this procurement?  Please clarify.

A. Attachment D, Position Qualifications, provides for the “Historical Allocation” of the contract as a whole.  Reference paragraph (d) Criterion 2 – Technical Approach (Sample Task Orders and Transition Task) contained in L.13 Proposal Preparation Instructions - Technical Proposal Volume II which provide Offerors as much detailed information as available related to the Sample Task Order the following information is provided (this information is based on historical and/or interpretations of historical information based on realignments of projected work identified in the Sample Task Order).  It is not an expectation of the Government, the Offeror must conform its proposal to their approach to accomplish the work identified in the Sample Task Order PWS).  
Put another way, the historical data provided for the Sample Task Orders in Section L.13 is specific to the respective task. 
______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Reference Attachment J-2 PWS paragraph 4.0, Site Management Support 3rd paragraph. What CMMS application is used by NETL for work management and control?

A.  
The Computerized maintenance management systems (CMMS) are Government furnished system that the Successful Contractor will have access to upon award of the contract.  The Government does not believe specific information on the CMMS is required in order to prepare a proposal for this solicitation.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Reference Attachment J-2 PWS paragraph 4.0, Site Management Support 3rd paragraph. With regard to the Central Work Control System, is the CMMS application hosted on a central server with each site having access to that server?  Please clarify configuration.

A. 
Yes, CMMS application(s) are on a central server and each site has access to the server.
______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Is the work reception activity staffed only during the normal workday as defined in paragraph H.36?  Please clarify.

A.
Reference H.36 Work Hours which states unless otherwise specified in the Performance Work Statement (PWS) and/or at the task level, the normal working hours are Monday through Friday as follows:

Morgantown and Pittsburgh sites:  8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m eastern time

Albany site:  8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. pacific time

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Clause H.17 - Where should offeror include its proposed Community Commitment policy/plan?

A. 
The RFP does not require that a Community Commitment policy/plan be submitted with the proposal.  ______________________________________________________________________________

The following questions have been received regarding access to classified information and one Government Response is provided below.

Q.
Reference Clause I.13 (a) which states “This clause applies to the extent that this contract involves access to information classified Confidential, Secret, or Top Secret” What is the FCL Clearance level and Personnel Clearance level required for this contract, and is the contractor required to have this level at time of award? 

Q. 
Clause I.20 - Is the offeror required to submit its SF 328 with its proposal if it does not already have a favorable FOCI? Do major subs also have to provide FOCI info?

A.
As noted in the RFP, this contract has the potential for work involving classified information.  In the event that the Government has a requirement for work involving classified information, it will be clearly indicated in the Task Order and the respective clearance requirement(s), for the Successful Contractor and any major of critical subcontractor expected to need access to perform the requirement) will be applicable at that time.

_____________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Clause I.19 - Is the Contractor required to supply Derivative Classifiers?  If so, how many?

A.
If a Task Order is issued involving classification and declassification of information, documents or materials, the Contractor may be responsible for serving as Derivative classifiers in accordance with I.19 952.204-70 Classification/Declassification (Sep 1997).

_____________________________________________________________________________

Q.  
Clause I.43 - Since the CCR and ORCA are no longer operational, being replaced by SAM, shouldn't this clause and all other clauses that refer to ORCA or CCR be revised?  This is imperative for the Reps and Certs as the offeror's authorized can no longer certify that its data is in CCR since it is not accessible. 

A.
References to CCR, ORCA, EPLS, etc. should be construed as being a reference to the new SAM site.  As soon as the FAR updates become available, they will be reviewed for incorporation at that time.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Clause I.81 - Is the contractor exempt from local sales tax for items of capital improvement or maintenance?

A. 
When purchasing items required under this contract on behalf of the Government, item would be tax exempt and the successful bidder will be provided with a copy of the respective tax exempt forms upon award of the contract.  However, capital improvements are usually done as separate constructions projects outside of the requirements of this solicitation and are not done as general maintenance.
______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Clause E.3 - what is the anticipated level of Architect-Engineering Services during this contract. Would an A/E subcontractor be envisioned to be a major subcontractor to the prime?

A.
As noted in Attachment J.2, Performance Work Statement, Section, A&E services is not a predominant effort as considered in comparison with the overall effort expected to be provided under this contract.  As such, an A&E subcontractor is not envisioned to be a major or critical subcontractor.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Section J.2, Grounds Maintenance Support - Please confirm that the Contractor has no Grounds Maintenance Support responsibilities at Morgantown or Albany.

A.
As noted in the Performance Work Statement (Attachment J.2), Grounds Maintenance Support under this requirement is for the NETL Pittsbugh site only except for Road Maintenance.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Please clarify the breakdown of the scope of the PWS between the 3 Sample Tasks.

A. 
The work described in the 3 Sample Task Order Performance Work Statements are written in accordance with the breakdown of scope in the Performance Work Statement of the Master Contractor.  In other words, there is not a one to one relationship.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Reference Attachment J-2 PWS paragraph 4.0, Environment, Safety and Health Support, 5th paragraph.  An individual with Incident Command certification is required at each of the 3 sites.  Is this interpretation correct?  

A.
The Performance Work Statement in Attachment J.2 requires that an incident commander (IC) be a part of the on-site support staff and be available 24 hours a day and 7 days a week.  The location(s) of the incident commander(s) is at the discretion of the Offeror based on their proposed technical approach.
______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
What level of incident command certification is required?  Please clarify?

A.
To become an incident commander, employee(s) must complete on-site incident commander training.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Reference Section L, Sample Task Order 1 (page 275).  Please provide the labor category listing by site.

A.  The Offeror should propose staffing and the respective site locations based on their proposed technical approach.  No changes were made to the solicitation as a result of this question.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.  
L.13(b), Format and Content, page 270 of 315. L.13(b) specified that all pages be single spaced using 12-point font. We assume that the single spacing and 12-point font refers to the proposal body text and that we can use a different font size for tables and graphics to maximize their readability. For example, using a smaller-sized sans serif font (such as Arial) improves readability of graphics and tables, compared to using a 12-point serif font such as Times New Roman. 

A.
 The 12 point font size specified in Clause L.13 (b) is mandatory to ensure readability of the proposal and was intended for the proposal body text.  It is not NETL’s intent to require Offerors to redo their graphics, or tables to conform to this font size.  However, readability is at the risk of the Offeror and graphics/tables with less than 12pt font may not be considered in evaluation of the proposal if they are not legible and clear to the evaluator.   

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Regarding instruction L.12 (a) General (page 267 of 315).  For members of the Offeror’s team (either major or critical subcontractors or specialty subcontractors), are any justifications for noncompetitive proposed subcontracts required? 

A. 
Yes

____________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
It is unclear if the sample problems should consider the cost of a full compliment of management staff as prescribed in the PWS or provide an apportioned compliment based upon relevance and work load demand just of the three tasks.

A. 
The Offeror should bid in accordance with L.14 Proposal Preparation Instructions – Volume III Cost Proposal and submit costs for the 3 Sample Task Orders, 1 Transition Task, and associated indirect expenses based upon your proposed technical approach.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
 Regarding instruction Exhibit D (page 286 of 315) –- Inventory of Personnel as of date of Proposal Preparation.  Since several of the sample task will involve the use of labor categories covered by the 2 Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) and have current incumbent staff, is it required to complete this Exhibit for the labor categories in the 2 CBA’s?  

A. 
Yes

____________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Regarding instruction on ODC’s (page 287 of 315), is local travel, i.e. between Morgantown and the Pittsburgh site to be included in this estimate?

A. 
This will depend on your proposed technical approach.  Put another way, if the Offeror’s proposed approach is to use personal vehicles (versus Government vehicles and/or the shuttle between sites), the local travel costs should be accounted for in the proposal. 

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Criterion 3 Relevant Experience and Criterion 4 Relevant Past Performance contained in paragraph (f) of provision L.13 Proposal Preparation Instructions – Technical Proposal Volume II appear to duplicate the forms that are required to be submitted. Please clarify which forms are to be provided for each of the two criterions. 

A. 
As indicated below, the only form used both by the Offeror and the Offeror’s reference(s) is Exhibit F – Environment, Safety, Health, and Quality Past Performance Information Form.

CRITERION 3 – RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

Exhibit E - Past Performance Reference Information Form

Exhibit F - Environment, Safety, Health, and Quality Past Performance Information Form

For each of the contracts identified for relevant experience, the Offeror and all major or critical subcontractors shall complete and submit the Past Performance Reference Information Form and the Environment, Safety, Health, and Quality (ESH&Q) Past Performance Information Form provided in Section L, Exhibits E and F.   

CRITERION 4 – RELEVANT PAST PERFORMANCE

Exhibit C - Past Performance Information Questionnaire Cover Letter 

Exhibit D - Past Performance Questionnaire 

Exhibit F - Environment, Safety, Health, and Quality Past Performance Information Form 

The Offeror and all major or critical subcontractors shall provide the Past Performance Questionnaire and the Environment, Safety, Health, and Quality (ESH&Q) Past Performance Information Form for each contract or project cited, to the appropriate point of contact for that contract or project.  The Offeror should use the Past Performance Information Questionnaire Cover Letter provided in Section L, Exhibit C, to identify the contract or project for the reference to which the questionnaire is being sent.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
L.13(b) and L.41e, Form and Content and Exhibit E, page 270 of 315 and 303 of 315. Please clarify the number of pages allowed in the Past Performance Reference Information Form (Exhibit E). Proposal instruction L.13(b) (page 270) states that Exhibit E is not subject to the page limitation. The Exhibit E form (L.41e, page 303) has a statement at the bottom of the page that bidders can attach only “one additional sheet maximum” when completing the form, indicating that Exhibit E is limited to 2 pages per contract. 

A. 
Exhibit E is limited to the form and 1 additional page.  A review of the RFP found that this was not clear and has been revised as reflected in Amendment 001 to this solicitation. 

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Section L.13 - Word 2007 and Excel 2007 are no longer a Microsoft supported software package, being replaced by Word/Excel 2010. Can DOE accept and read Microsoft Office 2010 files, as we have sometimes experienced problems down-saving to an earlier version.

A. 
No.  The required portable document formats specified in the RFP are correct. 

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Section L.41f - Since the proposals will not be submitted until CY-2013, should the years addressed be updated to YTD 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010, and 2009?

A. 
No, the RFP is correct as stated.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Section L.41f - Lines S5, S6, and S9 all seem to be requesting the same data. Please clarify the differences.

A. 
As stated on the Environment, Safety, Health, and Quality (ESH&Q) Past Performance Information Form contained in Section L.41f, fields S5, S6, and S9 are as follows.  To assist with the differences in these fields, certain phrases have been highlighted in yellow.

S5 is for the Case rate for Days Away, Restricted, or Transferred (DART) cases per 200,000 hours worked and identify the total number of hours worked.

S6 is for the Days rate for Days Away, Restricted, or Transferred (DART) cases per 200,000 hours worked and identify the total number of hours worked.

S9 is for the Case rate for Days Away From Work cases per 200,000 hours worked and identify the total number of hours worked.

______________________________________________________________________________

The following questions have been received regarding Site Visits and/or Pre-Bid Conferences and one Government Response is provided below.

Q.
As stated on page 289 Section L.17 of the RFP, a site visit is not planned.  A site visit would be extremely beneficial in the bidding process and we would like to formally request a pre-proposal conference and site walk.

Q. 
Our team respectfully requests the opportunity to view all site facilities and current operations to ensure we fully understand all elements of the PWS and can offer competitive operational efficiencies and innovations in our submittal.

Q. 
Many references to the CMMS, databases, and other systems and process will require additional study and analysis to fully understand the required functionality and work demand.  We respectfully request a site visit and additional information of these systems and process to allow us to incorporate improvements and efficiencies into our approach. 

A.
A pre-bid conference and a site visit are not planned for this requirement.  No changes were made to the RFP as a result of this request.  Offerors can access the NETL Reading room (http://www.netl.doe.gov/business/solicitations/ssc2008/index.html) to gain a better understanding of NETL.  Reference the Virtual Tours/Open House Information contained in the reading room.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
If the Offeror is a SBA approved mentor protégé Joint Venture, can each respective member of the JV submit up to three projects each? If so, can each member company within the JV submit more than 3 contracts for one individual company as long as the total relevant contracts do not exceed the total in aggregate.  (Example):  Two companies within SBA mentor protégé.  One company provides 2 relevant contracts and the other provides 4 relevant contracts.

A. 
Criterion 3, Relevant Experience and Criterion 4, Relevant Past Performance, contained in L.13Proposal Preparation Instructions - Technical Proposal Volume II, require no more than 3 projects for the Offeror and 3 projects for each major or critical subcontractor.  No changes were made to the RFP as a result of this question.

_____________________________________________________________________________
Q.
Reference Sample Task Order 2 Health Program Services. Are supplies, materials, equipment, etc. necessary to perform this task order furnished by the government?  Please clarify.

A.
No, unless specified otherwise in the Sample Task Orders.  Further, as indicated in L.41b, Exhibit B Cost Exhibits, the anticipated supplies, materials, and equipment necessary to perform this task order have been provided as a “plug” number and should be utilized in the Offeror’s proposal as indicated.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Section K.1 - Since the CCR and ORCA are no longer operational, being replaced by SAM, shouldn't this clause and all other clauses that refer to ORCA or CCR be revised?  This is imperative for the Reps and Certs as the offeror's authorized can no longer certify that its data is in CCR since it is not accessible.  In addition, are any of the 7 criteria (c)(2)  applicable?
A.
K.1, 52.204-8 Annual Representations and Certifications was updated in Dec 2012 and has been incorporated into this solicitation in Amendment 001.

_____________________________________________________________________________
Q.
 Reference Sample Task Order 1 Site Operations Support.  Are supplies, materials, equipment, etc. necessary to perform this task order furnished by the government?  Please clarify.

A.
No, unless specified otherwise in the Sample Task Orders.  Further, as indicated in L.41b, Exhibit B Cost Exhibits, the anticipated supplies, materials, and equipment necessary to perform this task order have been provided as a “plug” number and should be utilized in the Offeror’s proposal as indicated.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Are the three sample tasks going to be running concurrently beginning upon contract award, thus not requiring escalation? We assume all three tasks will be at the same site location, can you confirm? 

A.  The Task Order Period of Performance and the Task Order Location(s) are defined in the Task Order Request Information section in each Sample Task Order.  

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
Will the period of transition be reimbursable as a task order upon award.

A. 
No, the Fixed Price for transition activities will be reimbursable when the respective work has been completed.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q.
 Reference Sample Task Order 2 Health Program Services.  Special Task Order Instructions refers to “Off Site OHU” visits at Morgantown and Pittsburg.  However, the requirement is to establish “On-Site OHUs” at Morgantown and Pittsburgh.  Please clarify the apparent conflict.

A.
This has been corrected. See revisions in the RFP attached to this amendment.

______________________________________________________________________________

Q. 
Reference Sample Task Order 3, Exhibit 1 Location of Janitorial Services table.  The table in the solicitation has become distorted.  Which column (4 or 5) identifies the total square footage to be cleaned?  Please clarify.

A.
This has been corrected.  See revisions in the RFP attached to this amendment.

______________________________________________________________________________
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